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Mr. Victor P. Windle, Chief 
Hazardous Waste Permit Section 
Office of Land Quality 
Indiana Department of Environmental Management  
100 North Senate Avenue 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 

Subject: 

2020 Extraction Well Summary – Former General Motors Allison Gas Turbine 
Surface Impoundment 
USEPA ID#INR000021436 

 

Dear Mr. Windle: 

This letter has been prepared by Arcadis U.S., Inc. (Arcadis) on behalf of 
Revitalizing Auto Communities Environmental Response (RACER) Trust to 
document the pumping event that occurred at the Former Allison Gas Turbine 
(AGT) Division Surface Impoundment (Site) in October 2020. 

In the interest of readability, we have organized this letter chronologically. After a 
brief site background description, we present a timeline of events associated with 
the October 6 through 14, 2020 groundwater pumping event. 

Background  

RACER Trust is the current landowner of the Site, and has the responsibility for 
performing post-closure care activities identified in the Post-Closure Care Permit 
(Permit; last reissued on September 1, 2017 ).  The Site is located at 2701 West 
Raymond Street, Indianapolis, Indiana, and the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (USEPA) Identification number is INR000021436.   

The Site occupies a 10-acre, land-locked parcel, which includes a closed 
hazardous waste disposal unit surrounded by a slurry wall that is keyed into an 
underlying subsurface till unit.  There are nine extraction wells and 19 monitoring 
wells (A-, B-, and C-Series monitoring wells) associated with this Site (Figure 1).  
Two of the nine extraction wells are inoperable and information detailing this has 
been previously submitted to the agency (Arcadis 2019 and Arcadis 2020).  The 
extraction wells are used to pump water from inside the slurry wall to the 
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discharge control building via underground piping.  From the discharge building, the water is discharged 
to the sanitary sewer on the north side of Raymond Street. This discharge line is shared with the adjacent 
Rolls-Royce Corporation.   

The A-Series monitoring wells (MW-201A through MW-208A) monitor the groundwater inside the slurry 
wall of the Site.  The B-Series monitoring wells (MW-201B through MW-208B) monitor the upper sand 
and gravel unit outside the slurry wall of the Site.  The C-Series monitoring wells (MW-200C, MW-202C, 
and MW-203C) monitor the lower sand and gravel unit beneath a confining till unit outside the slurry wall 
of the Site.  Per the Permit, the extraction wells will be manually turned on when groundwater elevations 
in one or more of the A-series wells reach an elevation within 1 foot of the groundwater elevation 
observed in either the corresponding B- or C-series wells (for example MW-202A, B and C).  The 
objective of this requirement is to maintain an inward gradient across the installed slurry wall. 

Timeline of Events 

September 9, 2020: Arcadis completed the annual site-wide groundwater gauging event.   Groundwater 
elevations are provided in Table 1.  Additionally, the transducer data from the C-series monitoring wells 
was downloaded and an average groundwater elevation was calculated over a two-week period (8/26 to 
9/9/2020).   Groundwater elevations from the September 9 gauging event in the A and B-series 
monitoring wells and the transducer average from the C-series monitoring wells are illustrated in Figure 
2b. Arcadis calculated the differences in head between the A-series and B-series monitoring wells with 
the minimum difference in head of 1.53 feet occurring at the MW-202A and MW-202B well pair. Arcadis 
calculated the differences in head between the A-series and C-series wells (average groundwater 
elevation from transducer data 8/26-9/9/20) for C-series wells: 

 MW-202A and MW-202C:  0.77 feet head difference  

 MW-203A and MW-203C:  0.96 feet head difference 

 MW-206A and MW-200C:  0.10 feet head difference 

According to the permit, the September 9, 2020 groundwater elevations in the A-series wells compared to 
their applicable C-series nested well suggest that groundwater inside the slurry wall should be extracted.   

October 5, 2020: Arcadis completed the annual extraction well inspection.  At this time, the monitoring 
wells were re-gauged to confirm the groundwater elevations from the September 9, 2020 event and 
validate that the extraction wells were to be activated. Groundwater elevations collected on October 5, 
2020 are provided in Table 1.  Additionally, the transducer data from the C-series monitoring wells was 
downloaded and an average groundwater elevation was calculated over a two-week period (9/21 to 
10/5/20).   Groundwater elevations from the October 5 gauging event in the A and B-series monitoring 
wells and the transducer average from the C-series monitoring wells are illustrated in Figure 2b.  

During the extraction well inspection, extraction well EW-208 was determined to be inoperable due to a 
fault in the electrical disconnect box. The extraction well inspection findings for EW-208 were prepared in 
a separate letter submitted to the agency on December 11, 2020 (Arcadis 2020).  The discharge rates for 
each well were recorded and the combined flow rate of the seven operable extraction wells (EW-201, 
202, 203, 206, 207, 209 and 210) was approximately 153 gallons per minute (gpm), which is less than the 
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200 gpm discharge limit. A total of 155 gallons were discharged to the sanitary sewer during the 
inspection.  

October 6, 2020: Seven of the nine extraction wells (EW-201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 209 and 210) were 
manually activated to lower the water level inside the slurry wall. According to the Permit, each extraction 
well operates at approximately 25 gpm, and the discharge limit is 200 gpm. In order to lower the 
groundwater elevation in the A-series wells it was calculated to operate all seven extraction wells for 
approximately seven days at a combined flow rate of 150 gpm.   

October 13, 2020: The extraction well pumps were deactivated. During the October 6 through 13, 2020 
pumping event, a total of 1,573,086 gallons of water were discharged to the sanitary sewer.  

October 14, 2020: A site-wide gauging event of all monitoring wells was completed to evaluate the 
groundwater elevations 24-hours after pumping (Table 1 and Figure 2c).  An average groundwater 
elevation from transducers was not used averaged over a two-week period because of the pumping 
event.   

Based on the groundwater elevations, the groundwater levels in the A-series wells were lowered to more 
than 1-foot difference of the adjacent B-series and C-series wells. The A-Series monitoring well 
groundwater elevations confirmed that the water level inside the slurry wall decreased by an average of 
4.5 feet (Figure 2c).   

November 3, 2020: As required by the industrial discharge permit termination letter (Attachment 1), the 
October 6 through 13, 2020 discharge to the City of Indianapolis sanitary sewer was documented on the 
Statement of Industrial Waste Discharge (SIWD) form for the month of October 2020 and submitted to 
Citizens Energy Group. 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this evaluation, please contact Mr. Robert Hare of 
RACER Trust at 419.277.0815 or the undersigned. 

 

Sincerely, 

Arcadis U.S., Inc. 
 
 
 

Heather Gastineau-Lyons, L.P.G.  

Senior Geologist  

Copies: 

Paula Bansch, IDEM Project Manager 

Robert Hare, RACER Trust Cleanup Manager 
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